
Approved Minutes
Spanish Fork City Council Meeting

December 20, 2005

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mayor Dale R. Barney.  The pledge of
allegiance was led by Kaitie Startup.

Elected Officials Present: Mayor Dale R. Barney, and Councilmembers Matthew D. Barber, Paul
M. Christensen, Everett Kelepolo, Seth V. Sorensen and Chris C. Wadsworth. 

Staff Members Present: David A. Oyler, City Manager; S. Junior Baker, City Attorney; Emil
Pierson, Planning Director; Richard Heap, Engineering/Public Works Director; Kent R. Clark,
Finance Director/Recorder; Seth J. Perrins, Assistant City Manager; Dee Rosenbaum, Public
Safety Director; Dale Robinson, Park and Recreation Director; and Marlo Smith, Engineering
Secretary.

Citizens: Wayne Andersen, Jeremy Petersen, CJ Lewis, Keira Sloan, Kaitie Startup, Carolyn
Rigtrup, Daren Rigtrup, Jeremy ??, Jim Carrey, Robert J. Pittelli, Michael Norris, Alicia, Norris,
Dana F. Robinson, Joe Thomas, Audrey Adams, Kevin Creer, Ila Barney, Brent Money, Steve
Leifson, Kevin Creer, Nikki Kelepolo, Vanessa Kelepolo, Payton Kelepolo, Savannah Kelepolo,
Jordan Langston, Kelly Peterson, Ross Johnson, Doug Ford, Steve Johnson, Kim Snydergaard,
and Tracy Livingston.

Fiesta Days Chairman

Mike and Alicia Norris were recognized as the Fiesta Days Chairman.  Mayor Barney expressed
his appreciation for the volunteer efforts.

Minutes

None to approve.

Agenda Request - Wasatch Wind

This item was passed due to lack of representation.

Agenda Request - Dana Robinson

Mr. Robinson expressed his gratitude to Mayor Barney and the Councilmembers for their
sacrifice in the public service they provide that is not always recognized.  He felt he could not let
this opportunity go without expressing his gratitude and the gratitude of their help with the
sesquicentennial celebration, the arts council and the unwavering support by the Mayor and City 
Council.  

Mr. Robinson said it is a privilege to stand before these men for their vision and the opportunity



to work together.  It is the desire for other people to move to Spanish Fork because of the quality
of life here.  

Mayor Barney said the volunteers in this City are what makes it so great.

Councilmember Barber said the volunteers are what makes the quality of life we all enjoy.

Councilmember Christensen thanked Mr. Robinson for his help in bringing the City together. 
He said Mr. Robinson is a true leader.

Councilmember Kelepolo thanked Mr. Robinson for his work.

Councilmember Wadsworth thanked Mr. Robinson and also Councilmember Christensen for
their work with the arts council and sesquicentennial celebration.

Lease Agreement - Rocky Mountain Composites

Mr. Baker said Rocky Mountain Composites is an aviation related industry that purchased
property around the airport from the City.  They purchased 3 acres with the option to buy more.
Rocky Mountain Composites has done well and are seeing a need to expand their company. 
They would like to purchase adjacent property around the airport.  The FAA would like to see
the property around the airport leased and not sold.  Rocky Mountain Composites has agreed to a
100-year hangar lease agreement.

Councilmember Wadsworth said according to the hangar lease agreement, Rocky Mountain
Composites is planning to construct a building on the property.

Mr. Baker concurred.

Discussion took place regarding the rental fees that will be reviewed every twenty years or if it
should be reviewed sooner.

Mr. Baker said the twenty-year period can be negotiated with Rocky Mountain Composites if it
is the desire of the City Council.

Councilmember Sorensen asked if this agreement had to be approved by Springville City
Council also.

Mr. Baker concurred.

Councilmember Wadsworth asked Mr. Baker how the 20% increase cap was determined.

Mr. Baker said it was consistent with the other hangar lease agreements.

Discussion took place that Rocky Mountain Composites could force the purchase of the land.



Mr. Baker said Rocky Mountain Composites would like to stay in good standing with the FAA.

Discussion took place regarding the one hundred-year lease is not unusual for a business
transaction of this type.

Councilmember Wadsworth asked why no insurance will be required.

Mr. Baker said Rocky Mountain Composites will own the building and will have their own
insurance.

Councilmember Sorensen made a motion to accept the Hangar Lease Agreement with Rocky
Mountain Composites as presented.  Councilmember Christensen seconded the motion.

Discussion took place regarding the twenty-year fee review.  Councilmember Wadsworth,
Barber and Kelepolo would feel more comfortable with a ten-year fee review time.

The motion passed with a majority vote.  Councilmember Wadsworth was opposed to the
motion.

Agenda Request - Wasatch Wind

Mr. Baker said the lease agreement with Wasatch Wind has expired.  Wasatch Wind is asking
the City Council to extend the lease for another year to continue wind resource study.  Mr.
Livingston will also update the Council on the wind farm.

Mr. Livingston said the Perry Frandsen property is the approved site for the wind turbines.  The
turbines have been ordered by an investor with the understanding that all wind source data be
completed on the site.  He discussed the location and size of the wind turbines.  There is a meter
that is still measuring wind speeds on the City property that collects the data on the wind speeds. 
The project is still moving forward quite nicely.

Councilmember Wadsworth asked if the power purchase agreement has been determined.  

Mr. Livingston said they are still negotiating with Pacificorp.

Mayor Barney asked if the deadline to renew the lease agreement was just an oversight.

Mr. Livingston concurred.

Mayor Barney said he feels this is a good project.

Councilmember Kelepolo agreed and said it is good to use this natural resource and that there is
a way to channel it.

Councilmember Wadsworth asked if the Council is renewing the lease agreement tonight.



Mr. Baker said technically the lease has expired.  Mr. Livingston was required to approach the
Council.  If the Council feels comfortable with renewing the agreement, it will be presented at
the next council meeting.

Councilmember Kelepolo asked if direction is needed and not a motion.

Mr. Baker concurred.

Councilmembers Barber, Christensen, Sorensen, Kelepolo and Wadsworth are in favor of
renewing the lease agreement.

Public Hearing - Rigtrup Annexation

Mayor Barney reviewed the procedures and rules of conduct for a public hearing.

Councilmember Sorensen made a motion to move into the public hearing portion of City
Council meeting.  Councilmember Kelepolo seconded, and the motion passed with a unanimous
vote.

Mr. Pierson said this is a request from Carolyn Rigtrup to annex approximately 23.5 acres into
the City.  The City boundary is to the East of the property.  The properties to the ease were
annexed as part of the Gerald Hill Annexation.  The general plan currently shows the parcels as
Residential 1 unit per 5 acres and light industrial. The property is within the City’s policy
declaration boundary but outside of the current growth boundary.  The applicant is requesting the
property to be zoned Light Industrial.  Therefore, it could be developed outside of the growth
boundary.

Mr. Pierson discussed the location of the utilities.  

Mr. Pierson said two letters in protest have been received from Brent Kelly and Ed Holt.

Mayor Barney opened the hearing for public comment.  

Brent Money
Mr. Money said this area is part of the Westfield Irrigation Company boundaries.  He asked if
this would drain into 300 West and enter into the agreement being presented tonight.  

Mr. Baker said a separate agreement would be done for this area.

Mayor Barney closed the public comment portion of the meeting and opened the meeting for
City Council discussion.

Councilmember Kelepolo asked why the auction had issues.

Mr. Rigtrup said the auction is located west of their property and isn’t sure what issues they
might have.



Mr. Pierson said from the letter received the auction is concerned what impact will do to their
business and type of growth and property value change will take place.

Mr. Pierson feels this will increase the property values as business move in around especially
with the railroad spur.  

Discussion took place regarding the auction only opened on Saturday.

Mr. Pierson feels there will be no impact on the auction, the road will be upgraded and can
handle the traffic.

Councilmember Kelepolo said residents might complain about the auction in regards to smells,
etc.

Mr. Pierson said the type of residential in the general plan is 1 unit to 5 acres that will allow for
their own farming animals.  Or if the zone is light industrial the business should be
understanding.

Councilmember Wadsworth asked the nature of the entity interested in the property.  

Mr. Pierson said a manufacturing company was looking at this property, but wasn’t sure if they
were still interested.

Councilmember Christensen said Mr. Holt seems to be worried if a residential subdivision
moves in not industry.

Mr. Pierson discussed the article in the packet that discusses farmers and ranchers being forced
out because of their animals.

Discussion took place regarding the utilities’ depth and requirements.

Councilmember Sorensen asked Mr. Pierson if the growth boundary is different for light
industrial.

Mr. Pierson said the growth boundary is used to control residential growth, not industrial or
commercial growth.

Councilmember Barber made a motion to approve the Rigtrup Annexation at 1000 North Depot
Road subject to the following condition:

1. That the Rigtrup property is zoned Light Industrial.
Councilmember Wadsworth seconded, and the motion passed with a unanimous vote.  A roll
call vote confirmed the unanimous vote.

Councilmember Kelepolo made a motion to move out of the public hearing portion of the
meeting and reconvene the regular session of City Council meeting.  Councilmember Wadsworth
seconded, and the motion passed with a unanimous vote.



Utah Division of Parks and Recreation Trails and Pathways Federal Funding Program -
Fiscal Assistance Agreement

Mr. Pierson said staff applied for a grant and was accepted and now is coming to the Council for
approval on the agreement.  The agreement requires the City to match the grant for use in
constructing a trail.  

Mayor Barney asked if the money matched would be paid for out of impact fees.

Mr. Robinson concurred.

Discussion took place regarding other grants that could be received.

Councilmember Sorensen made a motion to accept the Utah Division of Parks and Recreation
Trails and Pathways Federal Funding Program Fiscal Assistance Agreement in the amount of
$42,000.00.  Councilmember Kelepolo seconded and the motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
A roll call vote confirmed the unanimous vote.

Salt Shed Bids - Over Budget.

Mr. Heap said several years ago the EPA passed regulations in regards to discharge into the
storm drain. In the past we have had no control of the discharge of salt into the storm drain. 
Each winter we lose 15 to 20% of salt storage.  Last year we received an estimate for a salt
storage shed. $82,000 was budgeted for the facility but due to steel increases the bid came in at
$88,000.00.  Since the bid came in over budget, it has come before the council for approval. 
Mr. Heap feels that there are also safety issues involved when the salt is clumped together due to
the moisture and the employees having to break up the salt in the dispensers.  Also due to the
storm drain requirements and the amount of salt lost it is better management practice to store the
salt in a building.  In time it may pay for itself due to the 15 to 20% savings in salt.  He
recommends approval of the bid from Sprung Instant Structures in the amount of $88,484.00.   

Mayor Barney asked if there will be concrete walls, and if not would holes be torn.  

Mr. Heap said there will be jersey barriers but not concrete walls.  If concrete walls were added,
it would make the bid considerably higher.

Councilmember Christensen asked where the building would be constructed.

Mr. Heap said it will be on the east side of the shops where the salt is located now.

Councilmember Barber asked if the EPA has any monetary fines for storm drain penalties. 

Mr. Heaps said not at this time, but believes they will in the future.

Councilmember Wadsworth asked if the City only received two bids.  



Mr. Heap said there are only two companies that have this type of building.  The bid was
advertised and there was another plan holder but they provide a different type of steel building.

Councilmember Kelepolo made a motion to award the Salt Shed Bid to Sprung Instant
Structures in the amount of $88,484.00 and to adjust the budget to reflect this over budget
amount. Councilmember Sorensen seconded and the motion passed with a majority vote. 
Councilmember Wadsworth was opposed to the motion.

Phase II Storm Water Regulations Interlocal Agreement

Mr. Heap said the amendment to the Interlocal Agreement with other cities will allow for an
outreach program that will help children understand what goes down our storm drain and how if
affects our drinking water.  This program will allow for the 4th grader’s throughout the county to
be taught the importance of the storm drain system. Our dollar commitment for this program is
$1,800.00.  

Mayor Barney said this group will help educate and train people.

Councilmember Wadsworth asked if this is strictly for water pollution education.

Mr. Heap concurred.

Councilmember Sorensen made a motion to accept the Amendment to Interlocal Cooperation
Agreement for NPDES Phase II Storm Water Public Education and Outreach Best Management
Practice Compliance Agreement as presented.  Councilmember Wadsworth seconded and the
motion passed with a unanimous vote.  A roll call vote confirmed the unanimous vote.

Strawberry Water Contract

Mr. Heap said the surrounding area Mayors and Strawberry Water board have been working on
an agreement that will allow the City to acquire and use Strawberry Water.  This agreement to
allow Strawberry Water to be transferred has been in negotiations since 1983.  Mr. Baker and the
other Mayors have spent a lot of time working on this agreement.

Mayor Barney said this is a good thing to have the contract in place.  

Councilmember Sorensen said it is quite a feat to get all representatives together and come up
with an agreement.

Councilmember Christensen made a motion to enter into contract with Strawberry Water Users
Association.  Councilmember Barber seconded and the motion passed with a unanimous vote.

Westfield Storm Drain Agreement

Mr. Heap said several years ago the City entered into agreement to take the storm drain water out
of three different areas.  The City has been using Westfield Irrigation Company’s ditches to



dispose of the storm water.  

Discussion took place regarding taking the storm water out and the easements needed to take the
storm water out of the Westfield Irrigation Company ditches.

Mr. Baker reviewed the changes to the Westfield Storm Drain Agreement.

Mayor Barney asked if Westfield Irrigation Company had any problems with these changes to
the agreement.

Brent Money
Mr. Money said they have no problems with the contract.  He said Westfield Irrigation Company
does not want to be a drainage company and hope the City will work quickly to get rid of the
storm water. Mr. Money wants to remind the Council if the ditch is piped it will be the City’s
responsibility to maintain.

Discussion took place to regarding the use of the overflow.

Councilmember Sorensen made a motion to accept the Westfield Irrigation Storm Drain
Agreement.  Councilmember Kelepolo seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  A roll
call vote confirmed the unanimous vote.

Mr. Heap said he would like to take a minute on behalf of the Public Works Department to thank
Mayor Barney, Councilmember Kelepolo and Councilmember Christensen for their time and for
an excellent job done.  

Gun Club Report 

Mr. Robinson expressed appreciation for the service from Mayor Barney, Councilmembers
Kelepolo and Christensen.  

Mr. Robinson said the members of the Gun Club board to discuss their program.

Mr. Doug Ford said he is here presenting on behalf of the Spanish Fork Gun Club.  He said there
is a small group of volunteers that help continue to run the Gun Club.  The Gun Club caters to a
lot of local shooters including boy scouts, church programs, corporate, and league shoots are
held on Thursday’s.  In the summer they receive hundreds of out of State and Country shooters.  

Mr. Ford introduced the Gun Club Board Members that were present at the meeting.  He said
this group along with hundreds of volunteers have made this a premier gun club.  The next
league shoot will begin on January 5, 2006 and will continue for the next five weeks.  Mr. Ford
said all is invited to come and enjoy a hamburger fry.

Mr. Ford presented the Mayor, Councilmembers, newly elected officials, and Staff with
scrapbooks that were put together by his wife Carol and daughter Leslie. 



Mayor Barney said again he would like to thank the volunteers of Spanish Fork City for their
donated time and resources.

Other Business - Council Report on Assignments

Councilmember Wadsworth said the finance committee met last month and expects to expand as
the new Mayor and Council review the committee.  He has nothing to report on the Library
Board, Rick Management or Fiesta Days.

Councilmember Sorensen said he has nothing to report on.

Councilmember Kelepolo said he would like to make his farewell speech.  He expressed his
thanks to the people in Spanish Fork and the opportunity to serve them.  He also said he has
learned more in the last eight years such as the water doesn’t just come out of the tap and that not
everyone agrees.  He would like to thank his past colleagues Roy Johns, Sherman Huff, Thora
Shaw, Lil Shepherd and others for their passion to serve and make this City better.  He expressed
his thanks to the staff for being the best and for their progressive outlooks.  He thanked Dave
Oyler for being a tremendous department head, for his balance between elected officials, citizens
and employees.  Councilmember Kelepolo said he would like to thank Mayor Barney.  He would
also like to thank his wife Nikki and his children for their continued support. Councilmember
Kelepolo expressed his thanks and appreciation for the opportunity to serve in Spanish Fork
City.

Councilmember Christensen said the senior citizen had their Christmas dinner last week.  He
expressed his thanks for all the volunteers at the Senior Center to help make it a great program. 
He expressed his thanks to the Arts Council Committee.  He also said he would like to thank
Richard Heap for his help in the SUVMWA board for Richard’s knowledge of water and said
that in the meetings if any problems arise they all look to Richard for guidance because of his
extensive knowledge.  

Councilmember Christensen would like to remind everyone of the Christmas Eve of lumination
at the cemetery, and he encourages everyone to participate.

Councilmember Christensen said he isn’t sure why he ran for Council but he has learned a lot,
and the new council will have a lot to learn.  He said he hopes the new council will help Spanish
Fork City continue to be the City that it has always been.  He expressed his thanks for the
employees and said they are a great bunch of people who work hard and take pride in their work. 
He said he would also like to thank the Mayor and Councilmembers that he has worked with.

Councilmember Barber said a new Fiesta Days Chairperson will start planning in January and
would like to invite more volunteers to help bring the community together.  He said that the EPA
sent out a report that UMPA is one of the top 15 for their coal firing.

Councilmember Barber expressed his thanks to the Mayor and Councilmember Kelepolo and
Councilmember Christensen for their patience and appreciation for their leadership.



Councilmember Christensen said he would like to thank Mayor Barney and expressed
appreciation for his wisdom, council, compassion for people and charity in heart.  He said Mayor
Barney is a great man, a great leader and appreciates all him and his wife does. 

Mayor Barney expressed thanks to his wife for her support.  He expressed his thanks for this
opportunity to serve.

Mr. Oyler said in behalf of himself and the city employees he would like to thank Mayor Barney,
Councilmember Kelepolo and Councilmember Christensen for their hard work, service and
support they provided.

Councilmember Barber presented Mayor Barney with a gift in behalf of the citizens and
employees.

Councilmember Wadsworth presented Councilmember Christensen with a gift in behalf of the
citizens and employees.

Councilmember Sorensen presented Councilmember Kelepolo with a gift in behalf of the
citizens and employees.

Adjournment 

Councilmember Kelepolo made a motion to adjourn.  Councilmember Christensen seconded,
and the motion passed with a unanimous vote.  The meeting adjourned at 8:04 p.m.

_______________________________________
Marlo Smith, Engineering Secretary                  

Approved: February 7, 2006


